KITSAP TRANSIT BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING MINUTES
NOVEMBER 20, 2007

Board of Commissioners Present:

Abel, Kim, Mayor, City of Port Orchard;hair

Angel, Jan, Kitsap County Commissioner

Bauer, Steve, Kitsap County Commissioner
Bozeman, Cary, Mayor, City of Bremerton

Brown, Josh, Kitsap County Commissiondige-Chair
Brockus, Adam, Bremerton City Councilmember
Maupin, Will, Bremerton City Councilmember
Quade, Kathryn, Mayor, City of Poulsbo

Board of Commissioners Absent:
Kordonowy, Darlene, Mayor of Bainbridge Island

Staff Present:

Breaux, Sheldon, Routed Operations Manager
Cartwright, Jeff, Human Resources Director
Clark-Getzin, Wendy, Planning and Capital Progr&imsctor
Clauson, John, Service Development Director

Gustafson, ElleCCESSand Non-Routed Operations Director
Hayes, Richard, M., Executive Director

Knox-Browning, Cathie, Clerk of the Board

Shinners, Paul, Finance Director

Swanson, Colby, Vehicle and Facilities Maintenadcector
Templeton, Ron, General Counsel

Visitors Present:

Downs, Sue, Interpreter for Robert Roach

Grund, Fred, OctobekCCESDriver of the Month

Kearns, David OctobeRouted Driver of the Month

Roach, Robert, KT Citizens Advisory Committee

1. CALL TO ORDER: Chairperson Abel called the meeting to order ad @& 2n.
2. CHAIRPERSON'S COMMENTS / DISCUSSION:

a. Recognizing the Routed aA@CESDrivers of the Month for October

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes aviember 20, 2007—APPROVED

1



Chairperson Abel called on Mr. Breaux to introdtloe October Routed Driver of the Month

Mr. Breaux introduced the October 2007 Routed &rivf the Month; Dave Kearney. He said Mr
Kearney came to work for Kitsap Transit (KT) on D&8, 1995, and that this is his sixth time as
Driver of Month since 2002. Mr. Kearney also was/BEr of the Year in 2003, has an eight-year safe-
driving record and is one of Routed’s most consi$feoutstanding operators. Mr. Breaux said Mr.
Kearney’s hobbies include woodworking, carpentardgning and model railroading and that one of
his most memorable moments at transit was recewitypewritten letter of thanks from a passenger.
Mr. Kearney’s personal goal is to attain finanamalependence before retiring and his advice torothe
drivers is to always pay attention to the radio affdr assistance if it won’t adversely affect your
route, Mr. Breaux said.

Chairperson Abel asked Mr. Kearney to comment.

Mr. Kearney said attentiveness to the radio gdregers lead-time to fix problems before they ogcur
and he said that is how he has kept his job straigle said he has been able to be successful fecau
he likes his job.

Chairperson Abel thanked Mr. Kearney for beingfdee of public transit.
Applause followed these remarks.

Ms. Gustafson then introduced the October 2AQCESPriver of the Month; Fred Grund. Ms.
Gustafson said Mr. Grund has worked A CESSince January of 2003, that this is his third tase
Driver of the Month and that he is consistentlytb@ Honor Roll. Ms. Gustafson said Mr. Grund’s
most memorable day AICCESSvas when he sustained a small injury when hisckehvas hit by
another KT driver, because of how well the supengsesponded. Mr. Grund likes to fly kites and
watch sports and his personal goals include bugrogerty and settling in Kitsap as well as travejli
the U.S. Ms. Gustafson said Mr. Grund’s professigioal is to never get into an accident againt, as
makes for a really bad day. She also said hiscadw othe ACCESSIrivers is to greet customers
warmly and tell them your name. Ms. Gustafson ttamgratulated Mr. Grund and thanked him for
being part of thCCESSamily.

Applause followed these remarks.

Chairperson Abel noted that her mother is thectiireof the world kite museum in Long Beach,
California.

Mr. Grund said he was familiar with the museumé&bgite.
b. Chairperson Abel called for the following motitmacknowledge the recently ratified
Machinists and Teamsters Contract for the Vehickriténance and Parts & Warehouse

Departments

Accept the terms and conditions of the agreement beeen Kitsap Transit and the

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

2



International Association of Machinists & AerospaceWorkers District Lodge 160, Local
Lodge 282 and the International Brotherhood of Chatfeurs, Teamsters, Helpers Local

589, ratified by the membership on October 22, 200for the period of November 1, 2007
through October 31, 2010.

Mr. Hayes said he wanted to thank Mr. Swanson anddrtwright. He said their presentation was so
fair and the treatment of the employees in shobeas so fair that negotiations lasted only tworbou
Mr. Hayes said he thinks that is a record. He B&aidSwanson keeps a positive attitude in the stibp
the time, which he and Mr. Cartwright carried thgbuhese negotiations.

Commissioner Angel asked for a brief of the contsaerms.

Mr. Hayes noted the salient feature was likelygaisig bonus, which is worth the cost of additional
negotiations.

Mr. Cartwright said the agency was able to develogition upgrades for this group of employees that
allow them to progress through levels of experdisé which the union was very interested in having.
He said this group was offered the same set ohiinges as the group in Facilities Maintenance; 3.5%
cost-of-living allowance or COLA plus the $500 siggbonus for the first year, followed by COLAs
of a floor of 2.5% and a ceiling of 3.5%, tied h&tSeattle-Tacoma-Bremerton, August to August
Consume Price Index-Urban, for years two and tbféke contract. There was also a small increase
in the boot and tool allowance and a very smali@ase in the shift-differential wage.

Mr. Cartwright said this was accomplished in ab@ud hours time, with three follow-up phone calls.
He also said this could not have been achievedwithir. Swanson’s leadership.

Commissioner Angel asked how many staff are aftebgethis labor contract?

Mr. Cartwright said 36.

Commissioner Brockus moved to approve the motion ahCommissioner Bauer seconded

the motion. Chairperson Abel called for those indvor of the motion. All voted yes. She

called for those opposed to the motion. There wer@ne.

At this point, Chairperson Abel noted for other wbmembers that issues related to proposed route
changes would be discussed as a new item undéni&taimation later in the agenda.

3. CITIZENS' ADVISORY COMMITTEE ISSUES:

Mr. Clauson said the CAC did not meet in November.

4. CONSENT / ACTION ITEMS:

a. Approval of MINUTES of October 16, 2007 Boarcehifey

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

3



b. Approval of KITSAP TRANSIT VOUCHERS for Octobeo,7

Voucher numbers 343 to 737 issued by Kitsap Trémsit October 1, 2007 through
October 31, 2007 in the total amount of $1,687,961payroll transfers from October 1,
2007 through October 31, 2007 in the amount of &1,,252.78, transfers for debt service
obligations from October 1, 2007 through Octobey 3207 in the amount of
$276,287.89 and Automatic Clearing House transfiensy October 1, 2007 through
October 31, 2007 in the amount of $418,548.55.

c. RESOLUTION 07-45 declaring certain Kitsap Tramsoperty as surplus and directing
it to be disposed of in an appropriate manner

Commissioner Quade moved to approve the consent agia and Commissioner Angel
seconded the motion. Chairperson Abel called folhbse in favor of the motion to accept
the amended consent agenda. All voted yes. Chairgen Abel called for those opposed to
the motion. There were none.

5. PUBLIC COMMENT on Discussion ltems

Chairperson Abel called for public comment on tisedssion items. There was none.

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Personnel and pending litigation

At 9:29 a.m., Chairperson Abel announced the baarald go into Executive Session for 10 minutes
for the purpose of discussing personnel and perldiggtion. The board returned to open session at

9:39 a.m.

7. FULL DISCUSSION / ACTION ITEM:

a. RESOLUTION 07-46 authorizing Kitsap Transitfstafaward the bid for body repair
and painting to Evergreen Collision

Commissioner Angel moved to approve Resolution 0764and Commissioner Bozeman
seconded the motion. Chairperson Abel called foridcussion. Hearing none, she called
for those in favor of the motion. All voted yes. Chirperson Abel called for those
opposed to the amendment to the motion. There werene.

b. RESOLUTION 07-47 authorizing Kitsap Transit Stafimplement a Physical
Examination Incentive Plan, in which current emgley and their spouses can receive
one hundred dollars each, per year, as an incerfovgarticipating in a complete
annual physical examination that is age and geraggaiicable

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

4



Commissioner Bauer asked for more background @pifuposal in terms of its cost. He said
this does not meet good medical standards for fotkst who are required to do an annual
physical. In addition, it is going to push up KHfealth plans cost.

Mr. Hayes said the premise here is that these beee shown to help people identify illnesses
which can be extremely costly and that such a ptaxwe approach is designed to save money
in long-run. He asked Mr. Cartwright to explaimther.

Mr. Cartwright said this is designed to help KTatea Type Il diabetes or a heart condition
earlier in the process. He said statistical infation from the Association of Washington Cities
indicates that one case of Type |l diabetes castnagployer $18,000 and seven days of lost
work. He said this is a companion to the persbealth assessment surveys the agency has been
doing the past couple of years. Mr. Cartwright saappears that the best course of action, in
terms of getting people in and checked for preagr8w cancer, heart disease and diabetes, is
for people to have conversations with their docaher than receiving health assessment-related
follow-up phone calls. He said there about 210 @encial Drivers License holders at KT but
that CDL exams are only every other year and theyat as extensive as physicals. Mr.
Cartwright said most annual physicals are coverad, except for the co-pay, under KT’s

current health plans, but employees are not takth@ntage of this benefit. He said this

program is designed to encourage employees thgetrinual physicals.

Commissioner Bauer asked what the cost is?

Mr. Cartwright said the budgeted amount is $60,®00 that would be the pay-out if fully half
of the 400-plus employees and their spouses toekradge of this incentive.

Commissioner Bauer asked if KT had talked to ilthecare suppliers about whether they
recommend annual physicals. He said he believésrtbst of what is being encouraged can be
done with a lab screening rather than a physical.

Mr. Cartwright said Premera has encouraged itfHmatthe has not talked to Group Health.

Commissioner Bauer expressed surprise that Preenemuraged annual physicals and would
pay for this.

Mr. Cartwright said Premera will pay for whateveicovered.

Commissioner Quade said she truly is a supportpredMention rather than remedy, but, as we
all are facing increased costs for benefits andtiheare, the issue comes down to whether we
can afford the number of employees we have and medlical benefits and then tell the people
we are serving, who are riding the buses, thatreeatting routes. She said she likes the idea
of encouraging people to be healthy, but they b to take some personal responsibility, and
personal financial responsibility. Commissione@e said it is wonderful most public agencies
provide so well for their employees but to balatiwd on the backs of bus riders, who don't
have those benefits, is difficult for her to sugpor

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

5



Chairperson Abel said it appears the board woldklriiore information on this topic and asked
if members wished to continue this resolution uthi next meeting. She asked board members
to chime in on the kind of information they woulikld to see.

Commissioner Angel said she agreed with CommissiQuade, both in terms of a belief in
prevention and that staff should be encouragea tinid. But, paying them an incentive, of up
to $60,000, to get a physical, is ridiculous, shid.s Commissioner Angel said she cannot
support this incentive; you can lead a horse temaiit you can’t make it drink.

Commissioner Maupin said it sounds good in prirgiplith rising health care costs,
encouraging people to be healthier, as that dowsttesave money in the long run. He asked if
there are examples from other agencies or busmigsshis specific program that have had
results board members could review?

Mr. Cartwright said King County has a participatimenefit; the more employees patrticipate, the
less they pay for their health care. He saidighatvery complicated program and that the
intention here is two-fold; get people to see theictors and create a program that is easily
managed. He said another benefit of implemenhigtype of program would be to head off an
expected request from the operators’ union foraased benefits.

Commissioner Maupin said the problem here is ma&ioglculation based on the assumption an
incentive would work and then save money in thglam. He said he would like to look at the
track record of a place where this has been tteedpod result, and copy that model.

Commissioner Bozeman said he agrees this is quitaraatic program, and interesting on its
face, as prevention will surely save money. Hd kaiis assuming KT can do this because its
health insurance coverage includes a physical.igusaid, the political side of giving cash
rewards to employees to get physicals the emplsyaso paying for is likely to engender some
push-back. This is not something the general puias access to, and, no matter how good the
program is, you have to look at how life is for theneral public, Commissioner Bozeman said.
He said it would be appropriate to provide moreinfation to the board as this idea, to make
public agency employees conscious about their teng-health, makes sense over the long-run.
Nonetheless, he said decision-makers need to cartbiel financial impact as well as the public
response and how this appears to the averagercpggng all the bills.

Commissioner Bozeman moved to continue Resolutiory @7 to the December Board
meeting and Commissioner Quade seconded the motion.

Chairperson Abel called for more discussion. Theae none.
Chairperson Abel called for those in favor of the mtion to continue Resolution 07-47 to the
December Board meeting. All voted yes. ChairpersoAbel called for those opposed to the

amendment to the motion. There were none.

Mr. Hayes said staff will return with informatiohat puts this proposal in the context of the

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

6



wider issues of lowering long-term health care sosie said board members may still choose
not to approve this program, but that providing théormation to them will be useful as the
agency pursues all ideas as part of its longer-tezed to work out with its labor unions what
type of health care program KT will offer its empées.

Commissioner Bozeman said the board needs to see data that can quantify, long-term, what
a program like this could accomplish. He said KEds to show its benefits to make the case
publicly for such an incentive.

Mr. Hayes said the general goal is to manage heal#hcosts in the long-term.

Commissioner Brockus asked if there is some clatkmproving such an incentive program,
tied to benefits for 2008.

Mr. Hayes said no.

c. RESOLUTION 07-48 authorizing Kitsap Transitstafimplement a year-round
community support campaign for the Kitsap Countdfbank network

Mr. Clauson said this is an alternative to KT's aalnFood Fare. And, for those not familiar with
that program, he said it is an annual year-end tbog on the buses in which KT allows
passengers to pay their fare with canned goodser®\those goods are donated is tracked, and
then the appropriate area food banks receive theepds. But, Mr. Clauson said with the
increased numbers of employers, particularly thiefal government, paying transit fares for
their employees, that incentive has dissipateda Aesult, the amount of donated food has
dropped significantly; from a high of 65,000 pound$,000 pounds. Mr. Clauson said even
5,000 pounds of canned goods sounds impressivésriiytcompared to amount of effort to
collect it. Over the past year, KT has been waykinth local food banks to develop an
alternative that could assist food banks and makiuthe drop in donations. He said the result
is a year-round awareness campaign that would fosuwonating to local food banks three or
four times a year. Mr. Clauson said the agency dtakke the same amount of money,
previously used for the canned-goods collectionuselit to put signs on the inside of buses and
producing brochures, for example, encouraging petgptionate to their local food banks.

Commissioner Quade asked if this proposal will joreollecting cans to educate people to
donate and use the same amount of money?

Mr. Clauson said yes.

Commissioner Quade moved to approve Resolution 084and Commissioner Bauer
seconded the motion.

Commissioner Bozeman said he had a related questiom whether KT participates in the
United Way campaign?

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

7



Mr. Clauson said all employees are encouragedntipate and that KT has a committee
comprised of employees that manages the in-hotisesef

Commissioner Bozeman asked how many employee<ipate, what the agency’s goal was
this year and if it had been met?

Mr. Clauson said he believed the goal was $25,0@0t=at this level of contributions had been
achieved.

Mr. Hayes said KT will provide a report to the bd@n United Way activities in December.

Chairperson Abel called for those in favor of the mtion to approved Resolution 07-48. All
voted yes. Chairperson Abel called for those oppoddo the amendment to the motion.
There were none.

d. RESOLUTION 07-49 authorizing Kitsap Transitfstafcomplete the purchase and
installation of a new phone system and to upgradeagency’s computer network system

Mr. Hayes said these funds would replace dyingesyst

Mr. Clauson said the agency has experienced sorjog iesues with its phone system and
indeed the administrative offices phones were dmeently for five days, during which staff
could not make calls out or in. And, unfortunajehe phone vendor’s business has grown but
still has only one person familiar with KT's systemd that person is often out of state
nowadays. Mr. Clauson said what KT also experigrazeoutage yesterday that brought down
the phones. One of KT’s IT staff is familiar withis proposed phone system, having installed it
when employed with the Washington State Transiiriasce Pool (WSTIP). In addition, KT is
proposing to buy this phone system using an RkRtsitred by the City of Sumner for piggy-
backing by other government units. Mr. Clauson &aith WSTIP and the City of Summer have
reported being very pleased with this system. This phone system will also improve KT’s
computer network system, eliminating the four Tink$ that now connect KT buildings in favor
of a single, larger “pipe,” which will immediatebpst less and provide for higher-quality phone
and computer system operations.

Commissioner Angel moved to approve Resolution 0784and Commissioner Brockus
seconded the motion.

Commissioner Brockus said he likes the part wheFes#ves $36,000 a year.

Mr. Clauson said the other advance is that KT aNe in-house staff who can maintain, modify
and work on this system.

Chairperson Abel called for those in favor of the mtion to approve. All voted yes.
Chairperson Abel called for those opposed to the aemdment to the motion. There were
none.

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

8



e. RESOLUTION 07-50 awarding a merit pay awaraaf find twenty hundredths percent
of 2007 annual salary to the non-represented ensgl®pf the agency

Mr. Hayes said KT has done this for a number ofya@ad that this award is somewhat
moderate compared to the previous year. He saibijgest issue this year for the agency, and
the reason the proposed merit pay award is 4.2peeand not higher, was ridership. Next year,
Mr. Hayes said he will be directing staff to proddewer goals and ones that are more focused
on ridership and cost reduction. That is what 280§bing to be about. We will have fewer but
tougher goals, he said.

Commissioner Bauer asked about the employee’s cosagien package and whether staff
receive a cost of living adjustment (COLA) in aduafitto this?

Mr. Hayes said the merit pay program is set ughabthis payment must be earned each year
and stands in lieu of the last step on the salemgdule. Mr. Hayes said this does not provide
much extraordinary compensation but rather provaddiective accountability with group tasks,
as he personally does not favor individual merstesns.

Commissioner Bauer said this is the most elab@ydtem of goals and reporting he has seen
and commends transit for that. He said he is ¢gryinget a sense of how this fits into the
compensation package; whether employees also se2eC&NLA and step increases?

Mr. Hayes said this is in addition to COLA butdtearned rather than automatic with time
served. He also said this represents the lasiosidipe salary schedule.

Commissioner Bozeman asked what the COLA is farsitastaff for 2008?
Mr. Hayes said it is three percent for non-represstaff.
Commissioner Bozeman said that means the totake.7

Mr. Hayes said that is correct, but that five patad that would nominally be the last step of the
salary schedule anyway.

Chairperson Abel said these employees cannot atitatsisist step unless they meet these goals
as a group.

Commissioner Maupin said usually steps on a salelngdule are accessed one time but that this
is available every year.

Mr. Hayes said it is available but has to be earned

Chairperson Abel noted this does not combine wip-pay each year.

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

9



Mr. Hayes said this merit pay is not added to #iary base. It is a one-time award and that
non-represented staff have the opportunity to aprto five percent of their salary every year by
meeting certain goals.

Commissioner Quade asked if this was then a one{tiomus that staff can earn each year?
Mr. Hayes said yes.

Several board members said it was a nice amounbaty.

Chairperson Abel asked Mr. Hayes how much thisbeaeach year.

Mr. Hayes said the most it can be is five percethich is equivalent to one step on the salary
schedule.

Mr. Cartwright said it might be better to look ahb@le salary structure situation, noting the KT
historically sets its wages five percent belowrtierket and uses this program for the last step,
which has to be earned. He said each of the segpa m the KT salary schedule is five percent
below the transit market and that this was verifigtth the last salary survey the agency
conducted a few years ago.

Chairperson Abel said there will be real interasttryear in the goals.
Commissioner Bozeman asked how many employees/esttes merit pay.

Mr. Hayes said between 100 and 150 of the appraei|nd20 KT employees are non-
represented, and that the agency has a differenbfsmerit pay program for its represented
employees. He noted that this is discussed diggmning of the year when the goals are set
and then the board receives progress reports thoaighe year. He said the program for
drivers, which is the largest group of represemieghloyees, focuses more on individual
performance, complaints and on-time route perfomaarMr. Hayes said shop goals, while
negotiated through the vehicle maintenance ang parbns, are also achieved collectively.

Chairperson Abel noted that page 44 of the boacllgidays out this information and the
differences between the merit pay systems for sgpted and non-represented employees.

Commissioner Quade asked whether the individuats eam benefit from this go through an
evaluation process.

Mr. Hayes said all eligible staff have to be in d@tanding to receive merit pay. With drivers, it
means that they are not at some point in the disaiy process, but he noted that has been a
point of contention. Mr. Hayes said that while éoypes have to be in good standing to be
eligible, the merit pay is basically earned by ¢béective efforts outlined here rather than by
personal evaluations.

Commissioner Bauer moved to approve Resolution 07@5and Commissioner Bozeman

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

10



seconded the motion.

Chairperson Abel said that for this discussiomatld be helpful for everyone to look at what
they are doing with the salaries in their own jdigsions.

Chairperson Abel called for those in favor. All voed yes. Chairperson Abel called for those
opposed to the amendment to the motion. There werene.

f. RESOLUTION 07-51 adopting the 2008 Operating @agital budgets for Kitsap
Transit

Mr. Hayes said he would like to stress that thihésbeginning of an entire year of quite serious
budget analysis. This is just a first step andoeked out some small service cuts and will be
deferring some of those for further considerati@eside those deferrals, Mr. Hayes said KT is
looking at some service reorganizations to probieer service, at no-cost, or with slightly
reduced costs. He said 2008 will be an active géaxamining everything we do.

Chairperson Abel asked about the first whereasselawhich indicates approval of an annual
budget is required by law to occur by Decembé??15

Ms. Knox-Browning said the state law requires apprdy Dec. 31 and KT’s by-laws require
approval of an annual budget by Dec"1%5he noted the by-laws were last updated about 10
years ago and that this requirement was tied t@@qus meeting time of the first Tuesday of
the month.

Commissioner Angel said she noted the CAC hasewi¢wed this and asked if they will?

Mr. Hayes said they would.

Mr. Clauson noted that due to some ilinesses, tlvasenot a sufficient number of CAC
members available to meet in November, so thatingeetas cancelled. He said the 2008
budgets will be an item on the CAC’s December agend

Commissioner Angel asked that the board receiepart on that, albeit after the fact.

Mr. Hayes said that discussion will be at the beigig of a year-long effort, and vis-a-vis the
Transit Development Plan, a seven-year look abtltget. He said KT has got to get out of the
swamp and get going back uphill again. He saickthdll be lots of time to review lots of
options over the next four months, noting the TBEue to the state in April.

Mr. Hayes then said Mr. Shinners would make a nialef summary presentation and be
available to answer questions about the proposerhtipg budget. Mr. Hayes said Ms. Clark-
Getzin was in attendance for questions about tbpgsed capital budget.

Mr. Shinners asked board members to turn to page B6ard packet where they would find

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

11



Exhibit B to the 2008 budget proposal. For conmgmanj the first two columns show the 2008
and 2007 budgeted amounts, and the last columndaslactual figures from January through
September 2007 and budgeted figures for the leesé thnonths of the year.

Starting with revenues, Mr. Shinners said operaticgme provides approximately 15% of KT’s
revenues, and that those are anticipated at $4li6min 2008, a number which he noted is
relatively flat compared to the 2007 figures.

Commissioner Bozeman asked what percentage oinit@ihe comes from transit users?

Mr. Shinners said about 10% comes from fares.

Mr. Hayes said farebox return varies with the sizthe system, and that 10 percent is
representative of systems of KT's size. He saad figure is lower for smaller transits with
mostlyACCESS8ype services and that it can go as high as 2034veore for larger systems like
King County Metro.

Commissioner Bozeman noted this is the reverse ®FW

Commissioner Bauer said he thought KT’s farebawrrewas higher.

Mr. Hayes said it was closer to 11 or 12 percenges six years ago, but that it dropped below
10 until recently, when KT raised its fares.

Mr. Shinners said until that increase in Februdl9&, farebox return was less than 10 percent.
He also said that some modes perform better tHasrgtfor example, the fare return with
vanpools is high and witACCESSit is low. The average is about 10 percent,di. s

Commissioner Bauer asked if KT gathers informatiomparing itself to other transits on
farebox recovery.

Mr. Hayes said yes and that such information camaeée available to board members. He also
said that it is important to remember, when loolkand(T’s overall recovery ratio, that the
agency has a higher proportionAECESService, as it serves to the boundaries of thatyou
Mr. Hayes said KT has a lot more three percentiseim mix (inACCES$than most transits,
which hurts us.

Commissioner Bozeman asked if riders pay a varipbteentage of the true costs, starting at
three percent?

Mr. Shinners said fares are not based on the pgeKT is trying to recover.

Mr. Clauson said that, as an example, the farésaivanpool program recover about 70% of the
cost of operating.

Commissioner Bozeman asked what the recoverysdte general Routed bus service.

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

12



Chairperson Abel said the budget documents sugtiesteturn there is about 20 percent.

Mr. Hayes said it is more than 10 percent. He adat of riders get transfers from the foot ferry
in order to ride the bus so that costs have tdlbeaded to get at the true return. He said hé wil
provide board members with a list of how much egaatt of the agency returns, but that will
need to include a description of the allocatiortesys

Commissioner Bozeman said it seems like as a pbbeyd, the issue all transportation systems
face is what percentage are the users going tapayvhat portion will be underwritten with
taxes. He said this is a conversation we neeave,lor it gets fuzzy. This is the main policy
issue we should be dealing with, as we discusfutiiee financial issues facing this
organization, Commissioner Bozeman said, what peéage users will pay and why.

Mr. Hayes said KT had a time-of-day fare at onenpaiharging more for rush-hour bus service,
which yielded higher returns. He noted that tlagesis talking about time-of-day fares for the
ferries and that such a fare structure for KT cdaddliscussed. In addition, Mr. Hayes says the
agency has a latent fuel surcharge policy whichdcba triggered at any time. He also said he is
hearing that the board may need a half-hour wonksofare issues.

Chairperson Abel asking if comparing operating mes and operating expenses by services is a
good way to look at?

Mr. Shinners said that can be misleading becausehead has to be allocated to get at the true
cost of ridership and farebox recovery rates.

Mr. Hayes said he would like to discuss this inuzag when this board will have some new
members. He said it is important that they stdit that information.

Returning to the budget summary for 2008, Mr. Sersrsaid sales tax revenues, which account
for approximately 85 percent of KT's revenues, laudgeted at $32.4 million. He said this
represents an increase of $1.9 million relativtheo2007 budget. But, relative to the actual or
projected 2007 sales tax, he said the 2008 figgpeesents about 5% growth in sales tax
revenue.

Commissioner Bauer asked if KT is budgeting for ensales tax growth next year than this year.
Mr. Shinners said no. He said the 2008 proposabdut five percent above the 2007 budget.

Commissioner Bauer asked if KT is anticipating angact from economic forces, noting the
state is taking a hit in its sales tax revenues.

Mr. Shinners said he believes this budget allowsHat. He said he looked at KT’s history,

KT’s peers and the Washington State Office of FarManagement, whose forecasted
revenue is above 6% for 2007. Compared to KT's pgencies, Mr. Shinners said KT falls near
the middle and that this budget anticipates lesg/tijr than in prior years, some of which were

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

13



very good years.

Mr. Hayes said sales tax growth has hovered betws@esmd to seven percent over the last few
years.

Turning now to operating expenses, Mr. Shinnerd Kdi is budgeting $33.6 million for 2008,
an increase of $1.5 million or 4.5 percent compaoe2D07. He said the largest contributors,
comprising 80 percent of this increase, are saawages and benefits and then fuel. Of that
$1.5 million, salaries and wages account for al$@d0,000 and another $850,000 will go for
benefits, primarily medical health care costs aB&B.

For 2008, KT is budgeting $2.70 per gallon for fugd from $2.50 a gallon in 2007, Mr.
Shinners said.

In terms of the agency’s cash position for 2008s&id KT will begin the year with $7.3 million
in unrestricted cash investments, meaning it isesiricted for the agency’s debt service. Mr.
Shinners said KT is budgeted a $2.1 million de@éasinrestricted cash and investments
primarily because the agency is operating at bese. In order to meet the local and match
portions of the capital program, he said the ageviltysee a decrease in unrestricted cash
investments, for an end-of year figure of $5.2 ianill

Commissioner Bozeman asked about the Line of C(e@C) the board approved earlier this
year.

Mr. Shinners said the agency asked for that LOtiasvas forecast as a potential issue starting
in 2008. He said the agency does not have angmudraws against the LOC and that this
proposed 2008 budget does not include any drawgpierating expenses. Mr. Shinners said the
LOC remains a contingency position as well as aefar funds if KT has an opportunity in the
capital program.

Commissioner Bozeman asked if this representsiaftas budget for operations?

Mr. Shinners said yes. He noted there is alwagptitential to draw on the LOC, during the
March to August period when KT typically operatesicash deficit position, because KT’s tax
receipts are higher at the end of year and fedgaaits are also typically more available with the
start of the new Federal Fiscal Year in September.

Mr. Hayes said if the agency uses the LOC this,yieaiill be for capital, not operating
expenses. He said KT's reserves are high enougjlyehar, but not in 2009, to operate without
using the LOC.

Mr. Shinners said KT requires between $3 milliod &3.5 million monthly to sustain current
operations.

Commissioner Bozeman asked if this budget will anomdate planned operating costs without
tapping into the LOC.

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

14



Mr. Hayes said yes, unless there are unanticipgigok in fare revenue or sales tax collections.
Mr. Shinners said the proposed 2008 budget doeammipate drawing on the LOC.

Commissioner Angel said she recalled the boardjo#é a discussion on the LOC and how it is
to be used, and she asked if the board would bieedlif it were necessary to take a draw.

Mr. Shinners said yes. He added that with thedoareiving monthly reports on KT’s cash
position, there would be plenty of time to be awairéhat.

Commissioner Maupin asked what kind of capital eses would require a draw.

Mr. Shinners said there are several opportunitigke LOC; one for capital and another one for
operating expenses, as KT does not have contingeseyves or large operating reserves.

Mr. Hayes said an example might be if there waslaydin receiving federal funds for the
planned purchase of 15 small buses in 2008. Thatdibe a short use of approximately one
million dollars while awaiting federal reimbursentetde said KT used a similar process earlier
this year to complete the re-financing of the proppurchase to expand North Base in Poulsbo.
The ability to use the LOC short-term helped thenmy to secure the property and also saved
some money on the purchase, he said.

Mr. Shinners said, in that example, because KTrftadapital reserves set up, the agency had
originally been obliged to enter into a promissooye with a larger interest rate than what the
agency achieved using the LOC.

Commissioner Bauer asked if the reserves are $ifidnfi

Mr. Shinners said yes, those are unrestricted aadhnvestments.

Commissioner Bauer asked if KT would be spendingdarthese reserves in 20087?

Mr. Shinners said KT does not have capital reseovesntingency reserves, and that the agency
operates from these cash and investments. Thegbedj$7.3 million would be used to operate,
but the LOC in not anticipated for use in 2008.

Commissioner Bauer said then, referring to Comrois=i Bozeman'’s earlier comment, this is
not a balanced budget because it is not carrysaif ibut of operations. KT is eating $2 million
in cash reserves, he said.

Mr. Hayes and Mr. Shinners both said yes.

Mr. Hayes said that is the rock in the hard sgwt ts what we cannot keep doing.

Chairperson Abel called for other discussion.

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

15



Commissioner Brockus asked about a seE€ESSauthorization grant that totaled $650,000
last year but for which there are no funds in 2008.

Mr. Hayes said that is a grant that allows a ometdraw for a two-year period.

Mr. Shinners said this is a biennium grant, ansl @ne of reasons why KT’s ending unrestricted
cash and investments is going to be larger this. Y& anticipate receiving $1.4 million before
this year ends and because we are drawing upamntire biennium grant this year, there is no
budgeted amount for 2008.

Mr. Hayes said this could be viewed as $7.3 millisinus $700,000 right off the bat as that
revenue is for next year.

Commissioner Bozeman moved to approve Resolution 4.

He then said he believed board members are alitsen® the fact that this organization has
some financial difficulties and that over next cleupf years, the board will need to make some
very difficult decisions. We are obviously on al@ycle here, and we need to get control of
expenses and costs, Commissioner Bozeman said.

Commissioner Bauer seconded the motion.

Chairperson Abel said she knows that it was hopatithe sales tax increase transit received
several years ago would be used to increase seandeclearly, that is not where we are. When
we look at the budget, it will be important to faicthat in because that story has not been told
very well, she said. It appears that the sales@ease is funding existing operations and
bought back some service that was gone, but ittdeckpand the service and people felt they
were buying new service with that sales tax ineeas

Mr. Hayes said that is an important point, as almemof people promised themselves more
service than we promised them. He noted that KITndit promise half-hour service with the
additional three-tenths of a cent of sales taxrgadpproved in May of 2001 replaced only 75%
of the MVET funds KT lost with the passage of I-6853.999. He said KT will tell that story
again. Mr. Hayes also said the agency may acthalg re-expanded a bit too much at that
time, hoping to satisfy those demands. If thewr@ sgrious mistake here, beyond the health care
and pension cost issues we are having now, it m@ged be that.

Chairperson Abel called for those in favor of the mtion to approve Resolution 07-51. All
voted yes. Chairperson Abel called for those oppoddo the to the motion. There were
none.

8. PROGRESS REPORTS:

a. Draft Financial Reports — September, 2007
b. Ridership Reports — September, 2007

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

16



c. Fuel Costs Reports — through the end of October

Mr. Hayes said these stand as read and he notethéhfuel situation continues to be a statistical
nightmare. He said that staff was going to usesth80 a gallon mark for budgeting in 2008, but
after the last six or seven loads of fuel, thatifegwas bumped up to $2.70. Mr. Hayes said that
for decades, the fuel budget was where transit geasaid their cushions, but with the current
oil situation, those cushions don't last.

9. STAFF INFORMATION / DISCUSSION ITEMS:

The following new item was added at this pointbm ineeting and moved to the top of the list in
the interest of time.

g. Proposed Service Changes/Reductions

Mr. Clauson passed out a memo to board menjhadsattached at the end of these minutdistussing
the results of the latest round of periodic rowgefgrmance analyses that look at which routes post
fewer than 10 passenger per hour (pph). He nbidiemo outlines the proposed cuts and that these
small route reductions are slated to take placewvat the county, with trips being cut on a variety
routes.

Mr. Clauson said KT has gotten a fair amount of g@mnt about changes to routes in Poulsbo and
Bainbridge Island from Commissioners Quade and &oogvy in whose areas these routes operate. He
said that as a result of that, KT would preferub those changes, to Sunday service in Poulsbo and
midday service on Bainbridge Island, on hold anshedack later for further discussion on those, @lon
with possibly even other changes.

Referring to the memo, he noted it shows the perémice level of those two routes; the #43 in Poulsbo
with an average daily ridership of 27 and an avermgh of 5.1, and the midday #100 on the islan wit
an average ridership of 35 trips or seven pph.@fuson explained here that the average daily
ridership is the number of trips per day, not tbenber of individuals on the bus.

He said KT has, in both these cases, committealkong with folks in these areas here. He noted
though, that there is a problem with timing assheat scheduled to go out to the public with these
changes until after today’s meeting when the bealldnstruct him to go ahead or not. But, KT gtaf
have to construct work shifts well in advance fovers to bid on, so the drivers know about propose
changes and are out building alliances to keepaeand then board members hear about the proposed
changes from that end. He said KT is taking aeridl looking at changing the sequencing of ad, thi
and that more discussion is planned in December.

For today though, Mr. Clauson asked if the boadl dray questions on the proposed service changes.

Commissioner Angel said it appears that the higpeltrates is on the #86 and she asked if that
provides the connection to the ferry.

Mr. Clauson said that is midday service conneatiogntown Port Orchard to the ferry dock at

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

17



Southworth.
Commissioner Angel asked what runs will remainten#86 and asked for an email with those details.

Mr. Clauson said he would send that information @nad quite a few runs will remain on the

#86. He said there would be no bus service makiagconnection at those times slated for cuts;
8:30 a.m., 9:30 a.m. and 10:30 a.m. but that tamrea number of trips before and after those
times. He also noted that the #86 has develogedaiprimarily commuter-oriented service,

with its first trip to the Southworth ferry at 4va.and its last trip leaving the Southworth ferry
dock at 7 p.m.

In response to a question from Commissioner Angel Clauson said there is now a gap between 10:30
a.m. and 12:30 p.m.

Commissioner Quade noted she had sent email thealoard members regarding the #43 route and
that she appreciated the timing dilemma Mr. Clawumticulated. She said she has received a petison
well as a number of phone calls regarding the elation of several of these runs. She said her pnobl
is that she has no response to people becauseasheoivgiven a heads up.

Commissioner Quade said she is concerned becanse o have contacted her have no other way of
getting around, especially if the Sunday serviceavte be eliminated today. She asked how board
members can get accurate information in ordergpard before it goes to the bus drivers, and treaet
has got to be a better method of communicatiormi@ssioner Quade said some of those who have
contacted her are really panicked. They are laveime and disabled and one woman in particular who
is eligible forACCESSorefers to use the Routed system to keep dowodsteof the service.

Mr. Clauson said KT is looking at that appropris¢éguence of events so that board members are not
blindsided.

Commissioner Quade said it would also help, whesd¢hmemos about service cuts are developed, to
also indicate what service will still be availalde, that information can be passed on.

Commissioner Brockus said he noted the 9.4 pphe®#®2 Poulsbo/Kingston/Suquamish and asked
why KT is adding trips there?

Mr. Clauson said in KT’s long-range plan, the agelooks at providing trunk service between
communities. He said there were not good connesti@tween or express service to Poulsbo and
Kingston and this proposed route (#63), now progdseelimination, provided that connection by
running on Bond Road from Poulsbo to Kingston. ,Budid not perform well at all so KT is proposing
to eliminate that route and move those trips toetkisting local alternative route to, in essenee,aute
rather than cut service and also serve Indianolhenvay up through Suquamish and into Kingston.

Mr. Hayes said that ridership generally improve€mwlou increase frequency on routes like these.

In response to a question from Commissioner Broakusit proposed cuts to the #32 route, Mr.
Clauson said this is the only Routed connectiowéen Poulsbo and Silverdale and that the

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

18



proposal is to eliminate the last 2 trips with pptes of 5.2. He said this is a year-to-date
average, indicating this route is not terribly wailized, rather than just a monthly number.

Commissioner Brockus said it is important to that® ride it. He asked if it was possible, on thé #8
Southworth shuttle, to turn those three trips slébe elimination into one or two trips timed taige at
the Southworth terminal at ferry departure times.

Mr. Clauson said all of KT's service to Southwocthordinates with WSF’'s schedule. He said these
trips now serve ferry arrivals and departures aechat performing well.

Mr. Hayes said that when KT staff return with a endetailed look at all these Routed issues, helsaid
will include some of the ‘classic’ ways of manags®yvice across-the-board. He said this is more
sharp-shooting weak pieces, but that staff canigeomformation on options to reducing either ewngni
or morning service connecting with ferries. Mr.yida said the capital program will not escape re-
budgeting but that he believes it would be diffidol reduce costs to a sustainable level withooikilog

at service cuts.

Commissioner Bozeman said he hates to see a fmaygl making decisions on routes, but that he
appreciates the political consequences to cutssaiteit appears that transportation systems arayal

fluid, as populations change and grow, and thakthee always decisions where priorities need to be
set. Commissioner Bozeman suggested that if sugkides were made on a regular schedule, using the
triggers transit now employs, it would be clear wiaeroute no longer qualifies for support becauge i

not well-used and board members would avoid amdblding.

Mr. Clauson said the 2008 budget includes the @self some computer software that will shorten the
delay between decision and implementation. Hels&ithas for years been very sensitive to responding
to demand and has tried not to create a bureautiiatwynly allows route changes once a year. Mr.
Clauson said the challenge continues to be maintathis responsiveness while also going through th
appropriate processes to notify the community.

Chairperson Abel Kim noted there were two minuédsih the published board meeting time and she
asked that other comments be mailed to KT stasbeoed for the December meeting.

She then asked for Mr. Hayes to comment brieflyh@remaining agenda items.

Other staff info items:
a. Electric Bus program
b. POF Funding
c. KT Funding for the EDC
d. Final report on the Great Weigh Off
e. Half-hour service
f. Different colors (by city) for new bus stop sgn

Mr. Hayes said the only issue that has become ipgebsre is that of different colored bus-signs for
different cities. He said the City of Bremertorstzsked KT to create the new signs destined for
installation in the city to use the city’s blueitssbackground color rather than KT’s blue-greeloco

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

19



Chairperson Abel suggested the poles could mathkities’ color schemes, but that for easy
identification, all bus signs should be similar.

Commissioner Bozeman said the City of Bremertdryiag to standardize the signs downtown.

Mr. Hayes said KT would like to keep all its sigoneking the same, but that perhaps customized poles
would work.

Commissioner Quade said that considering the ediri@nce issues the board discussed, any city that
wants customized signs should be responsible fgngdor that.

Mr. Hayes said the City of Bremerton has offere@dg for some number of signs and to install them a
well. He offered to return to the board in Decemisgh mock-ups of what the different signs would
look like. He also said that whatever happensnynaty with dense transit service, all the oldnsigvill
come down and all the new signs will go up at ti@e time to maintain area consistency.

The following new item was also added here foriaftaiscussion.
h. $3 million Bremerton contribution to the constiian of the vessel Snohomish

Mr. Hayes said the last item he needed to mentidayt was the question of the $3 million the City of
Bremerton donated to the construction of the SnasiomHe said those funds were never defined as
city money, but rather funding the city receiveohfr Puget Sound Regional Council’s competitive
Surface Transportation Program. He said the KiBegional Coordinating Council Transportation
Policy Committee (TransPOL) asked that the fundiegignation be changed to help pay for the boat.
While there is probably a moral obligation hereréhis no legal obligation, he said.

He noted that when WSDOT was confronted with thih@ end of the previous state legislative session
and said it had paid back those funds, it was qu#erprise to TransPOL members. Mr. Hayes said
those funds were ostensibly paid back when the sidded money to the SR 304 project, which is
shared city/state project. He said the stated#&med it added $5.7 million to the cost of finisl the
Bremerton Transportation Center but that neithemdreMis. Clark-Getzin were aware that those funds
were a payback for anything. He said he will coméi to investigate and report back to the board. H
noted this discussion has included State Rep. ieiRolfes of Bainbridge Island, and he said he
believes they are getting close to the truth.

Chairperson Abel asked if Mr. Hayes would like tmtnue the other items or send the board a memo
on them.

Mr. Hayes said he will put out a memo.

Referring to item a. under Staff Information, tHedfric Bus program, Mr. Hayes reported that he was
progressing on creating an assemblage to suppodié¢atric bus program. He said it will likely fiee

or six years before we see a run of these busethahtle believes the prototype is now fully funded
Mr. Hayes said that, after the first prototype réhweill be a set of four or five pre-production fotypes

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

20



and that this consortium will work with SEED ane tRort of Bremerton on realizing those. He noted
he had spoken to Commissioner Bauer about thig@nmognd better integrating this effort into his
vision of Kitsap as a community that is effectinethe use of energy.

10. FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER:

Chairperson Abel asked if there were any furthenments from board members.

Commissioner Bauer noted the Port of Kingston’§$8illion federal POF grant and that the port had
submitted its operating plan to the state, as reduiHe said it was signed by Mr. Hayes on bebfalf
Kitsap Transit and by the Kitsap County Commisasmwell. Commissioner Bauer said King County
believes it owns all of the $8-9 million for POFdaso officials here will need to make sure the gooe
approves the plan and then help find the funding.

Mr. Hayes said KT’s lobbyists are tuned very caligfinto this and are working on behalf of both
Bremerton and Kingston.

11. ADJOURNALt 10:51 a.m., Chairperson Abel adjourned the meeti

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Kitsapngiaat a regular meeting thereof, held
on the 18 day of December, 2007.

Kim Abel, Chairperson
ATTEST:

Cathie Knox-Browning
Clerk of the Board

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes avember 20, 2007—APPROVED

21



To:  Richard Hayes, Executive Director

From: John Clauson, Service Development Director
Date: 11/19/07

Re:  Proposed Service Changes/Reductions

The following are proposed changes/reductions to our service, following our review of
low ridership and pending Board review. Although these proposed changes have not
been presented to the public, they have been given to our drivers as they bid for their
work shifts under the new “bid”. As a result of our drivers becoming aware in advance,
our Customer Service Staff has responded to a few calls of questions from the public.
In addition, we have received e-mails from the Mayors of Bainbridge Island and
Poulsbo.

South Kitsap
#86 Southworth Shuttle (reduce 3.5 hours)
o Eliminate 3 mid-day round trips
8:30 a.m.
9:30 a.m.
10:30 a.m.
0 Average passengers per hour — 8.7
#80 Sidney (reduce 1 hour)
o Eliminate 2 trips and move 1 to Route 5
o0 Average passengers per hour — 6.6

Central Kitsap

#35 Old Town Shuttle (reduce 1.5 hours)
o Eliminate last 3 trips weekdays
6:30 p.m.
7:30 p.m.
8:30 p.m.
0 Average passengers per hour — 3.0
#35 Old Town Shuttle (Sunday) (reduce 3.5 hours)
o Eliminate Route on Sunday — 7 trips
o0 Average daily ridership — 18.7 trips
o0 Average passengers per hour — 3.0
#37 Fairgrounds Shuttle (reduce 1 hour)
o Eliminate last 2 trips weekdays
7:30 p.m.
8:30 p.m.
0 Average passengers per hour — 3.9




#37 Fairgrounds Shuttle (Sunday) (reduce 4.5 hours)
o Eliminate Route on Sunday — 9 trips
o0 Average daily ridership — 25.9 trips
o0 Average passengers per hour — 6.2
#32 Poulsbo/Silverdale (weekday) (reduce 2 hours)
o Eliminate last 2 trips
7:30 p.m.
8:30 p.m.
o0 Average daily ridership — 10.4 trips
o0 Average passengers per hour — 5.2

North Kitsap
#62 Bond Road (weekdays)
o Eliminate route and move trips to #92 Poulsbo/Kingston/Suquamish route
o0 Average passengers per hour — 5.7
#91 Kingston/Bainbridge
0 Add 5:50 p.m. “On Request” trip to Poulsbo
#92 Poulsbo/Kingston/Sugquamish
0 Add 4 trips from Poulsbo to Kingston
0 Add 3 trips from Kingston to Poulsbo
#43 Viking Avenue (Sunday) (on hold, pending additional review)
o Eliminate route, with #32 Poulsbo/Silverdale serving Wal-Mart and
Olympic College on Sundays
o0 Average daily ridership — 27
o0 Average passengers per hour — 5.1
#100 Winslow Shuttle (weekdays) (on hold, pending additional review)
o Eliminate 11 trips mid-day, between 9:30 a.m. and 2:30 p.m., with service
covered by Dial-a-Ride
o0 Average daily ridership — 35
o0 Average passengers per hour — 7

As stated earlier, we had received comments from the public, as well as two Mayors,
regarding the proposed changes to the #43 and #100 (highlighted above). With these
comments, staff is recommending further discussion with the Board in December
regarding these two routes, with implementation of any changes delayed until March,
2008. If you have any questions, please let me know.

Kitsap Transit Board of Commissioners: Minutes aivember 20, 2007—APPROVED

23



